HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 01, 2002
1:33 P. M

TAPE HFC 02 — 35, Side A
TAPE HFC 02 - 35, Side B
TAPE HFC 02 - 36, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Mulder called the House Finance Conmttee neeting
to order at 1:33 P. M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative El don Miul der, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representati ve John Davi es
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative John Harris
Representative Bill Hudson
Representati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Carl Mses

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Ji m Wit aker

ALSO PRESENT

Annal ee MConnell, Drector, Ofice of Mnagenent and
Budget, Ofice of the Governor; Gl Fenumai, Election
Program Specialist, Dvision of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor; Janet CCarke, D rector, D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Health and Soci al

Servi ces; Nico Bus, Adm ni strative Services Manager,
Division of Support  Services, Department  of Nat ur al
Resour ces; Nancy Sl agl e, Director, Di vi si on of

Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities; Captain George Capacci, General Manager,
Al aska Marine H ghway System Departnent of Transportation

and Publ i c Facilities; Fr ank Ri chards, St at ew de
Mai nt enance, Depart ment of Transportation and Public
Facilities; Dwayne Peepl es, Director, Adm ni strative

Services, Departnment of Corrections; Joan Brown, Analyst,
O fice of Managenent and Budget, Ofice of the Governor; Tom
Lawson, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnent; Robert
Labbe, Director, D vision of Mdical Assistance, Departnent
of Health and Social Services.

House Fi nance Committee 1 03/01/02 1:33 PM



PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jim Boutchart, Division of Energency Services; Pat Pitney
University of Al aska.

SUMVARY

HB 414 An Act maki ng suppl enent al and ot her
appropriations; anendi ng appropriations; and
providing for an effective date.

HB 414 was HEARD and HELD in Conmttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 415 An Act maki ng suppl enent al and ot her
appropriations; anmending appropriations; making
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing
for an effective date.

HB 415 was HEARD and HELD in Conmttee for further
consi derati on.

#HB414

#HB415

HOUSE BI LL NO. 414

An Act making supplenental and other appropriations
amendi ng appropriations; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HOUSE BI LL NO. 415

An Act making supplenental and other appropriations
anendi ng appropriations; maki ng appropriations to
capitalize funds; and providing for an effective date.

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, DI RECTOR, OFFI CE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
(OWB), OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, summarized the suppl enental

requests. She noted that eight years ago supplenental

requests were in the neighborhood of $90 mllion dollars,
partly because the budgeting process did not acknow edge the
full cost of operations. Ms. MConnell stated that the
Adm ni stration submtted a suppl enental request because the
version after My was not reflective of the actua

situation. Ms. McConnell discussed placeholders [for the
Suppl enrental Requests], which anobunted to $20 nillion
dollars after reforns. This was later noved to $16 nillion
dollars, and after May was reduced to $12 million dollars by

the Legislature. HB 414 & HB 415 total $38.7 mllion
dollars, which is over the placeholder, sonme of which are a
result of budget cuts. Ms. MConnell nentioned concerns

with federal funding because the schedule was del ayed.
There are critical areas pending that could potentially
affect the supplenental.

House Fi nance Committee 2 03/01/02 1:33 PM



Ms. McConnel |l added that when breaking the supplenental into
fast track and the regular process OVB paid nost attention
to the itens that are nobst urgent.

OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR

Section 8

El ecti ons conmponent request for $25 thousand dollars
from the general fund to cover costs for printing and
mailing a Primary Election Voter Education Guide in
tine to explain the new |aw (shifted from FY0O3 budget
which wll be anended).

GAIL FENUM Al, ELECTION PROGRAM SPECIALIST, D VISION OF
ELECTI ONS, OFFICE OF THE LEIUTENANT GOVERNCR, stated that
the Division of Elections requested supplenental funding in
the anount of $25 thousand dollars to pay for the cost of
printing a voter guide. The guide would be used to inform
voters of the changes in the primary election system as a
result of passage of HB 183. Ms. Fenum ai added that the
funding request would be offset by the Governor’s anended
FYO3 budget with a reduction of $25 thousand dollars to the
on-el ection year funding request. (section 8)

ALASKA COURT SYSTEM

Section 1

Judi ci al Conduct conponent request of $6.8 thousand
dollars appropriated from the general fund to be used
for legal fees in excess of the FYO1l supplenental
budget .

Co-Chair Miulder noted that there was a letter from the
Al aska Court Systemin the nenber’s files.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

Section 4(a)

Medi caid Services Conponent - Projected to run out
Apri | 16. Request for $4.57 mllion dollars
appropriated fromthe general fund for FYOl bills paid
in FY02; request for $1.8 mllion dollars also fromthe
general fund, requested to cover under-funding | ast
year below |ow case scenario; $6.34 mllion dollars
requested fromgeneral fund is for caseload at m d-case
range and cost increases, particularly for seniors and
di sabl ed. Total request of $12,712.5 dollars in general
fund appropriations. $106,618.0 is requested from

House Fi nance Committee 3 03/01/02 1:33 PM



federal funds. $23,903.3 designated from Statutory
Program Receipts; Total Medicaid Services request
$143,233.8 mllion dollars.

JANET CLARKE, DI RECTOR, DI VI SI ON OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, noted that the
total request from the supplenental budget for the Mdicaid
program was $143 million dollars. She observed that this was
the | argest budget item request in the programs history.

She anticipated that $106.6 nillion dollars in federal

f unds, $23.9 mllion from statutory designated program
receipts, and $12.7 mllion dollars of general funds.

Ms. Clarke referenced the handout, and discussed the rising
cost of health care in Al aska from 1995-2000. She stated
that the consuner price index (CPl) in Anchorage grew by
about 9 percent, while health care costs rose 27 percent.
The average cost of health care in Alaska is anywhere from
25-45 percent above average costs for the rest of the
country.

Ms. C arke added that the current authorization for Medicaid
is $561 million dollars for FY02, and that the program spent
$583 million dollars in FYO1. She noted that the program
was aware that they were $22 mnmllion dollars short of
spendi ng aut horization comng into the new year. She stated
that the program pushed about a week’s worth of spending
from FYOl into FY02, totaling about $13 mllion dollars.
She observed that the program kept on track with their
suppl enental |ast year until My and June when their bills
i ncreased consi derably.

In response to a question from Co-Chair Milder, M. d arke
expl ained that providers were pushing bills through faster
because they knew that there was a possibility the Medicaid
Program could run out of noney. She advi sed that pharnmacy
costs had an over 30 percent increase in FY02.

BOB LABBE, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES, interjected that
this was related to a sl ow down in services after Christnas.

More clainms show up in the spring and sunmer nonths because
people are sicker in the wnter, and there is a lag in
billing. The grant prograns, community based care prograns,

and nental health prograns, which are sensitive to the cash
flow issues, are part of the problem They are attenpting
to get everything through the system in case the program
runs out of noney. He reiterated that there has
hi storically been a spike in that quarter.

Representative Davies referenced the spreadsheet. He
inferred that the Medicaid budget had been funded at the | ow
case scenario last year. In addition, the budget was funded
bel ow the | ow case scenario for a portion of the year. In

House Fi nance Committee 4 03/01/02 1:33 PM



order to be nore realistic the budget should be adjusted
fromthe |low case to the md case scenario to finish out the
year.

Ms. Clarke explained that the Governor used the |ow case
scenario [in his FY02 request for Medicaid funding]. The
Legi sl ature cut the Medicaid budget bel ow the case scenari o.
Medi cai d costs have "l eaped over" the md case scenario and
are currently in the high case scenario. She referenced a
letter sent to the Commttee in April that tried to identify
what a md case scenario would look like, but the request
before the legislature is now at the high case scenari o.

Representative Davies summarized that [Medicaid costs] are
now hi gher than the m d case scenario.

Ms. O arke explained that the description in the spreadsheet
describes the general fund portion of the request. The
$23.9 nmillion dollar statutory designated program receipts
(SDPR) fromthe Fair Share program are al so being used as a
mat ch for the Medicaid program which noves it into the high
case scenari o.

Representative Davies understood that all estimtes have a
margin for error. He observed that the departnent chose the
| ow case scenario and the | egislature agreed. He asked how a
$143 million dollar funding |Ievel would conpare to the high
case estimate.

Ms. Clarke replied that a high case scenario had not been
attenpted. It was her opinion that the $143 million dollars
in additional spending authority would have cone out of the
hi gh case scenario. She observed that pharnmaceuticals were
30 percent higher in the first six nonths of FY02 than they
were in FYOl1

Representative Davies attenpted again to determne, if the
budget had been funded at the md case scenario, how nuch
nore woul d have been placed into it?

Ms. Clarke replied that the md case would have needed
another $8 to $9 million general fund dollars.

Representative Davies asked how nuch nore was used from
ot her funds. He pointed out that designated receipts were
about twi ce the general funds, and federal funds were about
five tinmes the program receipts. He questioned if the
ratios would be simlar to that.

Ms. Cl arke was not sure.

Representati ve Davi es requested that information.

House Fi nance Committee 5 03/01/02 1:33 PM



Co- Chair Mul der observed that the Governor had requested the
| ow case scenario funding.

Representative Harris pointed out that the House Finance
Comm ttee had fully funded the Medicaid Program

Representative Croft contended that the Legislature did not
estimate as it should. Medicaid needs to be fully addressed
in order to prevent the concern in the future.

Representative Harris advised that there were two options,
either put nore noney into it on a local level to match the
federal funding or reduce the Medicaid options.

Representative Croft and Representative Davies disagreed
with that conment.

Ms. Clarke pointed out that there was a 7 percent increase
in cost services. She observed that the elderly and
di sabl ed were the highest cost services. Overall there has
been an 18 percent increase in Medicaid costs this year
Phar maceutical and honme and community based waiver care
costs are 30 to 40 percent higher.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde noted that there have been projections from
the Departnent of Labor estimating a huge growh in the
popul ati on over 65 years old, and a large decrease in the
popul ation age 30 to 50. He asked if the Departnent had
experienced the increase.

M. Labbe replied that there has been a continuous increase
in the senior citizen population on the Medicaid program
The elderly population using Mdicaid have not adjusted at
the sanme rate as other groups. The retirees are retiring
with nore incone and are not eligible to access these
prograns at that rate. They are nore likely to access the
benefits later in life when they enter nursing care. M.
Labbe said he would have expected to see nore, but the
gromh in the Mdicaid elderly program is actually | ower
than the overall population growh of that segnent of the
popul ati on.

Co-Chair Mul der observed that the huge federal anpbunts from
the statutory designated project receipts related to the
| ast cycle of the Pro Share Program

Ms. Clarke agreed and stated that in the FYO2 budget, they
can continue the Pro Share Program This year, along wth
the Pro Share Program a simlar programstarted called Fair
Care, which uses the sanme nechanism as the Tribal Hospital

Six nonths funding was included for that program in the
suppl enental request. Oherw se, the inpact on the general
fund and fiscal gap woul d have been greater. She added that
they had done their best to limt the general fund access.

House Fi nance Committee 6 03/01/02 1:33 PM



M. Labbe spoke to the progress made by the Fair Share
program in \Washington DC. There have been infornal
di scussions with the federal governnent on a state plan
anendnent. M. Labbe said he anticipates formal questions on
t he anmendnent. He thought that it would be in June before
it is known whether or not it is approved. He noted that
according to the attorneys he had spoken to, the program was
| egal under the regulations, but they were not sure what
action woul d be taken. M. Labbe did not forsee the issuance
of paynment in anticipation of the approval.

Represent ati ve Hudson acknow edged the difficulty in dealing
with this budget. He asked the nunber of Alaskans that
requi re Medi caid assistance.

M. Labbe replied that the division serves approxinately
118,000 Al askans per year, with an average of 80,000 per
nont h.

In response to a question asked by Representative Hudson,
M. Labbe explained that each state has sone latitude in
establishing eligibility |evels. There are certain groups
that are required to be covered. There is a federal
Suppl enrental Security Income (SSI) program which nakes a
person eligible for Medicaid. If a person noves to a
different state that has a Medicaid programin effect, the
state would have to cover them Each state has different
poli ci es, but they are required to follow national
gui del i nes.

Representative Hudson asked how the Al aska standards stack
up agai nst Washi ngton State.

M. Labbe replied that Alaska is at 200 percent of the

poverty |evel. Alaska is with a group of states at that
| evel . He thought that Washington was at 250 percent. He
clainmed that the federal poverty |level varied throughout the
country. Adult public assistance has one of the highest

i ncone standards because Al aska has a hi gher suppl enent than
nost states, due to the high cost of living in Al aska. Sone
states provide a nedical needy program allow ng people to
buy into the Medicaid program Al aska does not provide
that. He concluded that each state varies in its structure.

Co- Chair Mul der asked about the co-pay arrangenent.

M. Labbe replied the federal governnment does not allow co-
paynent for services for children or pregnant wonen.
Currently, there is discussion regarding that concern. He
addressed the Denali Kid Care program

Representative Croft noted that he was stunned that 20
percent of Al askans are incone eligible for Medicaid.

House Fi nance Committee 7 03/01/02 1:33 PM



Co-Chair Mul der commented that the Native Health Services
(NHS) addresses a certain amount of that popul ation. He
agreed that it was a stunning percentage and asked if it was
i ndi cative of other states.

M. Labbe replied that it was representational of the other
states. He nentioned the unduplicated annual nunber, and
added that a large percentage of eligible recipients are
chil dren.

Co-Chair Wlliams asked if Alaska Native Services or
Medi caid paid first.

M. Labbe replied that the State is the primry payer for
the Indian Health Service. To the extent that they access
the Indian Health Service and Tribal Health System the
State receives federal rei nbur senent . Much of the
enrollment is driven by collection of third party revenue in
response to under-funding. Only 60 percent of the health
need is being nmet in the State. It is different in Alaska
because Al aska has a larger Native popul ation than a smaller
state does, wth the exception of South Dakota and New
Mexi co. Most states do not have Al aska natives equaling 38
percent of Medicaid recipients.

Representative Davies pointed out that around 25 percent of
Al askan kids live in famlies below the poverty l|evel, and
around 40 percent of the population has no health care at
all.

Co- Chair Ml der asked how nuch of |ast years appropriation
was spent on non federally matched prograns and services.

Ms. Clarke replied that nost match federal services. She
nmentioned that the State was forced to pay for abortion
servi ces through the Suprene Court.

Co-Chair Mul der asked if it was through the Suprene Court or
the Superior Court.

Ms. Clarke said it was the Suprene Court.

Co-Chair Mil der said he thought the case was still before
the Superior Court.

Ms. Clarke said that the Superior Court had ruled in July
2001.

Co-Chair Ml der mentioned sone services in the Hold Harnl ess
Program that were not federally matched.

Ms. Clarke discussed the Permanent Fund Dividend Hold
Har ml ess Program and Longevity Bonus Hol d Harnl ess Program

House Fi nance Committee 8 03/01/02 1:33 PM



M. Labbe thought there were maybe 15 individuals that
should not be included in the program possibly because of
coding problens in the system He thought that essentially
it is matched except for a very small piece.

Section 4(b)

$2,529.6 mllion dollars requested to fund Subsidized
Adoptions & GQuardianship forrmula program casel oad
gr owt h.

Ms. Clarke noted that last year $2.3 million dollars was
requested for the program Legislative funding was reduced.
There was a $1.8 million dollars under-funding going into
FYO2. M. Cark said that request was based on a 14 percent
growh in the Subsidized Adoption Program and that the
actual growth was 18 percent. She explained that the
program subsi di zes special needs adoptions. Al t hough the
request was above projections, growh in the program was
good news, because it helps children find pernmanent hones
instead of remaining in foster care prograns. She noted
that this item had been reduced in the FY02 budget.

Co- Chair Ml der asked whether the children would still be
able to be transferred for adoption wthout the special
services if the appropriation was not nade.

Ms. Clarke explained that this type of adoption is a speci al
situation and that there is a contract signed each year. It
is | ess expensive than foster care.

Co- Chair Mul der asked what the average subsidy was.

Ms. Clarke said it averages $22.70 per day, and that a
speci al needs child receives an augnented rate of $48.89 per
day.

Co-Chair Ml der noted that total would be $8,000 per year.

Ms. Carke added that it continued until the child is 18
years ol d.

Representative Harris pointed out that these are sone of the
har dest cases to place and have been on the wait list for a
nunber of years.

Ms. Clarke reiterated that these are sone of the nost
difficult children to place and sone have been in foster
care for a nunber of years. In response to a question from
Representative Harris, M. Carke advised that these were
speci al needs children that m ght not otherw se be adopted.

Representative Harris referenced the Ball oon project.

House Fi nance Committee 9 03/01/02 1:33 PM



Ms. Clarke stated that the Balloon project has hel ped nove
1,200 children out of the foster programin the |ast three
years.

Representative Harris asked what funding the request would
do to the wait list.

Ms. Clarke clarified that the funding in the suppl enental
covers existing cases that have cone into the subsidy
program At the close of FY01l, 1500 children per nonth were
receiving the subsidy. At the end of FY03, it may be 1800
chil dren per nonth.

In response to a question from Representative Lancaster, M.
Clarke noted it did not include enmergency foster care.

Di scussion followed between Co-Chair Milder and Ms. C arke
on the average augnented rate for a special needs child
subsi dy. Co-Chair Mil der pointed out that nbney was not
being saved by noving a child out of foster care into the
Subsi di zed Adoption Program because the per-day rate was the
sane in both prograns unless it was for a special needs
child. Ms. Clarke naintained that nost of the children in
t he Subsi di zed Adopti on Program were speci al needs children.

Representative Croft discussed wth Ms. Clarke the yearly
average cost for a child in the program Representative
Croft noted that these are the nost difficult children and
they would not be adopted wi thout state assistance. They
could either sit the in foster care systemor with a state
subsidy enter a honme. He suggested that it would be cheaper
than foster care.

Ms. Clarke pointed out that foster care is approximtely
tw ce the anobunt of the subsidy for special needs children.

Representative Croft questioned the inpact to the famlies
if the state did not fund the $2.5 nmllion dollars in
subsi di zed costs. Ms. Clarke stated that they had received
| egal advice that action could lead to a breach of contract.

In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Clarke noted that children return to foster care due to
di sruptions. She anticipated that there wuld be nore
di sruptions, as the famlies could not afford to retain care
w t hout the subsidy.

Co-Chair Mul der questioned if famlies were asked to take
| ess. He understood that these are all high needs children.
Co- Chair Mul der requested that Representative Harris
research the matter.

House Fi nance Committee 10 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



TAPE HFC 02 - 35, Side B

Co-Chair Mul der questioned if there had been a foster care
reduction. Ms. Carke noted that the slow track suppl enent al
shows an offset to the reduction in the special needs foster
care area. They continued to | ook at projections.

Co-Chair Miul der stated that he did not see a decrease in the
sl ow track supplenental for foster care.

Ms. Carke indicated that despite a $600 thousand doll ar
deficit, they only asked for $300 thousand doll ars.

Represent ati ve Hudson asked about the federal funding.

Ms. Clarke explained that the federal funds were retained.
Some of the state funds are needed to match the federal
appropriation in order to receive the Title 4E Program She
expl ai ned that they receive 50 percent of the funds for the
popul ation that is eligible.

UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA

Section 11(a)

Request for $800 thousand dollars from University
Receipts for System wide Small Planning, Design and
Constructi on. Funding authority needed in excess of
the FY02 small project non-general fund receipt
authority for Lena Point fisheries and ocean sciences
facility for sinultaneous excavation with the National
OCceani ¢ and Atnospheric Association [NOAA] to prevent
di sruption and damage to the facility at a | ater date.

PAT Pl TNEY, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA, TSETIFIED VIA
TELECONFERENCE. She presented the request for authorization
for University receipt expenditure for Lena Point, and a
change in scope request on capitol appropriation from FYO2.
She stated that the University needs to commt to the
Nat i onal Oceanic and Atnospheric Association [NOAA] for the
infrastructure.

In response to a question from Co-Chair Ml der, M. Pintey
stated that the University receipts were comng from bond
proceeds, to be paid by natural resources funds.

Representative Davies noted that Senator Stevens has been
involved in the project's funding.

Ms. Pitney acknow edged that there had been a federa
agreenent, and that there was expectation of state funding
for the project as well. The Lena Point facility had been
on the University's Capitol Budget request for 5 years.

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



Section 11(b)

Scope Change for Sec 3, Ch 61, SLA 2001 to include UAA
Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning Piping
Repl acenent Phases 1-4

Representative Lancaster questioned inconsistencies in the
bill regarding pool replacenent and HVAC pi ping that did not
appear on the short form M. Pitney explained that in FY02
the scope increased to include high priority maintenance
and that extended to the pool replacenent. Pipe failures in
the sumrer required energency naintenance. Some projects
had to be del ayed because of that. Ms. Pitney enphasized
that a piece of the supplenental provided the clarification
to expand funding to cover the pipe failure.

Co-Chair Mul der noted that the University had contacted him
when the failure occurred and that he thought that the item
was appropriate.

M LI TARY AND VETERANS AFFAI RS

Section 6 - Disaster Planning & Control

Request for $100 thousand dollars from the general
fund to maintain 24-hour State Enmergency Coordination
Center [SECC], the agency that <coordinates all
federal, state and |l|ocal jurisdictional responses
associated with any disaster or event.

NI CO BUS, ADM N STRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER, DIVISION OF
SUPPORT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, spoke in
support of the request. He noted that another $174 thousand
dollars was found within the departnent. M. Bus expl ai ned
that in order to keep the center running, they utilize two
12.5-hour shifts, seven days a week. There are other
unantici pated costs. The request would allow fundi ng through
the end of the year and serves the purpose for which it was
i nt ended.

Co- Chair Mul der expressed concerns that the departnent knew
the appropriation level but did not mnage wthin that
| evel .

M. Bus noted that cutbacks were nade to avoid using general
fundi ng, however the center was still about $100 thousand
dol l ars short.

In response to a coment by Representative Lancaster, M.
Bus explained the redirection of existing general fund
authority. He stated that they were no |onger performng a
nunber of functions to accommodate the cutbacks.

House Fi nance Committee 12 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



Representative Davies asked which of the functions they
di verted or stopped.

JIM BOUTCHART, PROGRAM MANAGER, DIVISION OF EMERGENCY
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF M LI TARY AND VETERANS AFFAIRS
TESTI FI ED VI A TELECONFERENCE, |isted cost reductions.

In response to a statenent nmade by Representative Davies

M. Bus explained that the D vision thought their request
was going to be around $300 thousand dollars. There were
unantici pated costs. M. Bus reiterated that $174 thousand
dollars were diverted fromw thin the division

Co-Chair Mul der questioned if the enployees were unionized.
M. Bus noted that they were working 7.5-hour days and that
t hey now work 12.5-hour shifts. He stated that they now work
a 42-hour a week shift and that they are working seven days
a week, year round.

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Section 7

Scope change for SLA97, CH50, Sec 15(k), P9, L13 from
prepare and admnister the Kalgin Island 11, Caribou
Hills, S. Nnilchik-Dome View, South Ninilchik Block
tinber sales in Kenai Peninsula to Kenai Peninsula to
reduce risks fromw ldfire.

M. Bus explained that the request was for reappropriation
for tinber sales fromfour specific sites. Two were underway
when the nmarket fell. He noted that they still need snal
sal vage tinber in that area and he asked that the noney be
used for smaller sales around the urban area to reduce fire
hazards and to offer salvaged tinber. The request is to
redirect existing funds.

Representative Lancaster asked whether the Departnent was
working in conjuncture with the Borough. M. Bus affirned.

Representati ve Hudson asked if there were | oggi ng operations
in that area. M. Bus observed that the spruce beetle is
maki ng the mar ket unproductive.
Section 6

D saster Planning & Control

Representative Davies questioned the need for a 24-hour
facility.

M. Bus stressed the inportance of that function taking into
consi deration honel and security issues.

House Fi nance Committee 13 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND PUBLI C FACI LI TI ES

Section 5

$2,876.9 mllion dollars requested for WMarine H ghway
Stabilization Fund FYO2. Deficit due to Colunbia fire
and fuel cost increases. If not funded, Spring/Sumrer
service would need to be drastically cut, reducing
revenues during highest revenue season. Ships would be
put into lay-up status for extended peri ods.

NANCY SLAGLE, DI RECTOR, DI VI SI ON OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FAC LITIES,
testified in support of the request. She noted that the
request is based on the inpact of the |oss of revenues that
the Marine H ghway has had related to the fire on the
Col unbia and delays in refurbishnment. The Colunbia was off
line for approximately 13 nonths. The projections of
revenues did not take this into account. The departnent had
been optimstic in their budget request. There was a $3.5
mllion dollars loss, sone of which was offset through
reductions in fuel costs.

CAPTAIN GEORGE CAPACCI, GENERAL MANAGER, ALASKA MARI NE
H GHWAY SYSTEM DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC
FACI LI TIES, spoke to the actions taken by the departnent to
of fset the loss of revenues fromthe Col unbia. He noted that
there were a nunber of neasures to reduce costs: unfilled
vacanci es, downgraded positions, travel reductions, docking
fees which are being negotiated, coordinated ship vyard
costs, reorganization to reduce overtinme, schedule printing
savi ngs, renegotiated contracts for services and supplies,
and i ntroduced a seasonal tariff increase.

Co- Chair Ml der asked how much the itinerary charge would
gener at e.

Captai n Capacci noted that rider-ship had increased. O her
ships were laid up during the winter to save operating
costs. He nentioned revenue |osses due to cutbacks in
service and the addition of a cost of living increase from
the tariff in October. He discussed sone unusual ship |ay-
ups to save operational costs.

Co-Chair Mulder questioned if wunion contracts allowed a
st oppage of paynent during |ay-up.

Captain Capacci observed that in FY02 the enployees took
vacation time that anmounted to $10 nmillion dollars.

Co- Chair Ml der observed that this was one-eighth of their
budget .

House Fi nance Committee 14 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



Captain Capacci enphasized the need to keep a well-trained
enpl oyee base.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde suggest ed t hat | abor shoul d be
renegoti at ed.

Captain Capacci acknowl edged his remarks regarding | abor
costs and noted that several contracts are being negotiated
with intent to reduce costs. He stated that he was in close
contact with the Union and that the Union understood the
situation.

Co-Chair WIllians stressed that if enployees were treated
Wi th respect and paid what they were worth, there would not
be a need for union contracts. He enphasized the inportance
of the system

Representati ve Hudson poi nt ed out t hat t he Ferry
Stabilization Fund was created to appropriate $40 mllion
dollars allowing it to grow, and be used only for unusual
circunstances. He pointed out that the fund has been
depleted fromlack of |egislative appropriation.

Co-Chair WIlianms understood that ferry enployees received
vacation tine in |ieu of pay increases.

Ms. Slagle acknow edged that non-nonetary incentives are
part of the negotiation process.

Section 10(a) (1)

$127.8 thousand doll ars requested fromthe general fund
for Chandalar (Janmes Dalton Hwy) Maintenance Station
Repl acenent. Tenporary rental and other costs of
vacating the nmaintenance station due to imm nent
structural failure.

Section 10(a)(2)

$21.9 thousand dollars requested from the general fund
for East Fork (Parks Hwy- S of Cantwell) Mintenance
Station Replacenent. Tenporary rental and other costs
of vacating the nmintenance station due to inm nent
structural failure.

Section 10(a)(3)
$45.5 thousand dollars requested from the general fund
for WIlow (Parks Hwy) M ntenance Station Repl acenent.
Tenporary rental and other costs of vacating the
mai nt enance station due to i mmnent structural failure.

Section 10(a)(4)

House Fi nance Committee 15 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



$72 thousand dollars requested from the general fund
for None Maintenance Station | nm nent St ructural
Fai lure. Tenporary rental and other costs of vacating
t he mai ntenance station to due immnent failure.

Section 10(b)

Chandal ar Mai ntenance Station Replacenment Design Costs
(SDPR from NTSC - see line 6) $456.8 thousand dollars
from Statutory Designated Program Receipts.

Ms. Slagle reviewed the project requests. She advised that
there were failures at the Chandalar facility. She noted
that several facilities are not structurally sound to
withstand the elenents and three facilities had been shut
down. Actions have been taken to take care of the enpl oyees
and equi pnment associated with those facilities.

FRANK RI CHARDS, STATEW DE MAI NTENANCE ENG NEER, DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES, explained that
tenporary arrangenents are being nmade until permnent
repl acenents can be found. He detailed the new | ocations
and inplications for the tenporary storage and operation of
t he mai nt enance stati ons.

Ms. Slagle added that they are in the process of finding
alternative space in Nonme. The request would help with the
costs in dealing with the alternative |ocations. The timng
is such that the design needs to occur pronptly to take
advant age of the short construction season.

Representative Foster stated that several of the structures
had col | apsed. He pointed out that the one in Nonme had been
built in 1943. He thought that the state had gotten its
noney’s worth out of that one.

Ms. Slagle provided nenbers with a packet, which provided
i nformati on and phot ographs for each of the facilities (Copy
on File).

Representative Davies enphasized that the request is the
result of the State of Alaska's deferred nmintenance
probl enms. He stressed the safety issues involved.
Representative Croft revisited consideration of the Marine
H ghway vacation pay issue. He pointed out that vacation
time occurs regardless of when it is taken.

Co-Chair WIllians agreed that vacation tine could be
m sl eadi ng.

Section 10(c)

House Fi nance Committee 16 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



Title change from Wst Douglas H ghway Extension to
Gasti neau Channel Second Crossing to match federal
proj ect nane change

Ms. Slagle noted that the request is an extension of the
West Dougl as Hi ghway. She asked for the title to be changed
in state statute so that the Gty and Borough could go forth
with the project.

Representative Hudson affirnmed the inportance of the title
change, and pointed out that this project was of utnost
i nportance to the City and Borough of Juneau.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS

Section 3

Pal mer Correctional Facility request for $172.2
t housand dol | ars appropriated from Statutory Designhated

Program Recei pts for a new well including punp and wel |
house as primary water well has failed and is
nonr epai r abl e. Statutory Designhated Program Receipts

(SDPR) are from interest earnings of Northern Tobacco
Securitization Corporation (NTSC).

DVWAYNE PEEPLES, Dl RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT COF CORRECTIONS, provided information on the
departnent's request. There was a catastrophic failure of
the main well of the Palnmer facility. He stated that the
energency neasures that were taken were inadequate.

JOAN BROWN, ANALYST, OFFI CE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (QOwB),
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, explained that the statutory
desi gnated program receipts would be received from tobacco
securitization and could only be used for debt service on
t hose bonds or for capitol projects.

Representative Hudson stated he was unaware that the state
was using the Tobacco Securitization funds for Capitol
Proj ects.

Ms. Brown explained that $2.8 mllion dollars in earnings
were previously unanticipated and that OVB was infornmed by
the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) that the
earnings could only be used for debt retirenment or Capitol
Proj ects.

DEPARTMENT OF COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPNMENT

Section 2(a)

| daho National Engi neering and Environnental Laboratory
Grant Contract for Alaska Business Research. Funds in

House Fi nance Committee 17 03/01/02 1:33 PM



t he ambunt of $20 thousand dollars are avail able March
1, 2002.

TOM LAWSON, DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF
COMVUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, explained that the
request was for the Alaska Science and Technol ogy
Foundat i on. He noted that the Foundation had received a
contract W th t he | daho Nat i onal Engi neeri ng and
Envi ronnental Laboratory. He stated that the contract would
provi de business opportunities for the state. M. Lawson
added that the project was expected to start in Mrch.

Section 2(b)

I nternational Trade and Busi ness Endowrent, which would
repl ace wunrealized FY02 I|nvestnent Earnings. Fund
Source Change in the anount of $230.4 thousand general
fund dol | ars.

TAPE HFC 02 - 36, Side A

M. Lawson explained that this was a funding source change
for the International Trade and Market. He noted that as a
result of the market downturn the funding shortfall was over
$200 thousand doll ars. He stated that the division would
have problems wth scheduled mssions, trade shows and
possi ble layoffs if the funding was not appropri ated.

Representati ve Davi es asked how | arge the endowrent was.

M. Lawson replied that it has a principal of $4,950 mllion
dollars and is invested by the permanent fund and treated as
a subset of the Al aska Science and Technol ogy Foundation
endownent . After sone discussion wth Representative
Davi es, M. Lawson pointed out that the net earnings reserve
were counted separate fromthe principal, which is where the
probl em rests.

Representative Davies explained that there were a nunber of
these kinds of funds that should be treated as endownents
for that reason

Representative Hudson asked what the typical had earnings
had been.

M. Lawson replied that in the better years the endowrent
had earned about $500 thousand dollars per year. The Rainy
Day account was penalized by the unrealized | osses.

Representative Hudson inquired what would happen if the
funds were not appropri ated.

House Fi nance Committee 18 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



M. Lawson stated that the division would need to | ook at
| ay-offs and shutting down prograns for the rest of the
year.

Section 9(a)

Technical correction to add the inadvertently omtted
FYO2 appropriation from the Power Cost Equalization
Endowrent fund to the Power Cost Equalization [PCE] and
Rural Electrification Fund.

Section 9(b)

Fully fund the statutory fornmula in the PCE statute in
the anount of 1,100 mllion general fund dollars. Cost
increase is due to higher fuel costs.

Section 9(c)

Fully fund the PCE statute in the amount of 1,100
t housand dollars. Increase due to higher fuel costs. 1

Section 9(d)(1)

Del ete sufficient authorization from FYO2 to pay FYO1
late bills.

Section 9(d)(2)
Add aut horization to pay PCE Program FY 01 late bills.
M. Lawson reviewed sections 9(a)- 9(d)(2)

M. Lawson noted section 9(a) was an oversight in the FYO02
budget . On  February 1st of each year, the revenue
departnment is to provide an estinmate on 7 percent of the
val ue of the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) endowrent to be
appropriated into the PCE fund. That item was overl ooked
The Department requests that $7.062 nillion dollars to be
appropriated fromthe PCE Endowrent into the PCE Fund.

M. Lawson spoke to section 9(d). Due to the increase of
fuel oil [costs] in FYOl, the departnent ran short of noney
for the PCE program He stated that the request was for $56
t housand dollars to be reappropriated to cover the costs of
unpai d FYOl1l grant obligations.

M. Lawson explained itens 9(b) & (c). Because of the high
cost of fuel, the PCE program had to be prorated at 92
percent. It has been prorated for the past seven nonths. In
February, it was rationed down to 80 percent. Section 9(b)
would put $1.1 mllion dollars into the general fund and
then appropriate it to the Departnent to fully fund the PCE
program

House Fi nance Committee 19 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



Co- Chair Mulder noted that the program was funded at $15.7
mllion dollars last year. He commented that fully funding

isin the "eye of the beholder.”

Vi ce-Chair Bunde observed that fuel costs are always a
problem for the program Fuel costs in urban Al aska had
declined in the past several nonths. He asked if fue
costs could stabilize in the next fiscal year.

M. Lawson replied that there was a handout wth the
spreadsheet that estimates the total cost for FYO3 to be

$18.453 mllion dollars. The costs are not just due to
hi gher fuel costs but also to inflation and growh in the
area. In response to a question from Vice-Chair Bunde, M.

Lawson estimated a growth assessnent at about 4 percent.

Representative Davies acknow edged the question of fully
funding. He asked about increased utilization.

Ms. McConnell noted that the PCE statute provides a formula
and directs the appropriation to be prorated if there is
insufficient funding. The issue of full funding has been
tied into the original endownrent plan. Wen the Endowrent
was put together, what was required to fully fund that
statute was $15.7 mllion dollars, the projection in FYOO.
The increase in fuel prices happened subsequent to the plan
bei ng put together. The ambunt was outside the expectations
of that program area.

Ms. McConnell referred to the difference in fuel prices in
rural Al aska. Fuel deliveries are nmade in late sumer, and
that nmeans if the price of fuel is still high in August, the
rural areas do not receive the benefit of the change in
mar ket price that urban areas do. Power Cost Equalization
costs today are based on summer fuel costs. She added that
rural utilization is significantly below what it is in urban
ar eas.

Representati ve Lancaster suggested that this relates to the
Rail Belt Energy Fund, which stated the Bush would receive

15.7 percent even when the endowrent was established. He
clainmed that the state is not doing their job by not telling
the oil conpanies what they are to pay for oil. At this

tinme the conpanies tell the state what they will pay.
Co-Chair Mul der agreed and credited M. Poe.

HB 414 and HB 415 were HELD in Commttee for future
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

House Fi nance Committee 20 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



The neeting was adjourned at 3:29 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 21 03/01/02 1: 33 PM



